

# MINUTES

**Ordinary Meeting of Council** 

Tuesday 27 July 2021

6.00pm Council Chambers

#### CITY OF ALBANY COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN (ALBANY 2023)



#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

Item	Details	Pg#
1.	DECLARATION OF OPENING	3
2.	PRAYER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF TRADITIONAL LAND OWNERS	3
3.	RECORD OF APOLOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE	3
4.	DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST	4
5.	REPORTS OF MEMBERS	4
6.	RESPONSE TO PREVIOUS PUBLIC QUESTIONS TAKEN ON NOTICE	5
7.	PUBLIC QUESTION TIME APPLICATIONS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE	5 5
<u>8.</u> 9.	PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS	5 5
<u> </u>	CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES	6
11.	PRESENTATIONS	6
12.	UNRESOLVED BUSINESS FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS	6
	MINUTES AND RECOMMENDATIONS OF COMMITTEES	•
ccs	Corporate and Community Services Committee	
CCS359	FINANCIAL ACTIVITY STATEMENT-MAY 2021	7
CCS360	LIST OF ACCOUNTS FOR PAYMENT-JUNE 2021	9
CCS361	DELEGATED AUTHORITY REPORTS-MAY 2021-JUNE 2021	11
CCS362	WRITE OFF GENERAL DEBT REPORT AS AT 30 JUNE 2021	12
CCS363	RATING SUBSIDY: SPORTING AND COMMUNITY ORGANISATION RECIPIENT LIST FOR 2020-21	13
CCS364	NATIONAL ANZAC CENTRE-LEAGUE OF LOCAL LEGENDS MEMBERSHIP AND PROMOTION	14
CCS365	ALBANY BICENTENARY PROVISIONAL GOVERNANCE MODEL	20
CCS366	ALBANY SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB EXPANSION PROPOSAL	25
CCS367	2021-22 BUDGET ADOPTION	31
DIS	Development and Infrastructure Services Committee	
DIS264	PLANNING AND BUILDING REPORTS JUNE 2021	38
LEMC	Local Emergency Management Committee	
LEMC026	MINUTES OF THE LOCAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE- 25 MARCH 2021	39
14.	NEW BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE INTRODUCED BY DECISION OF COUNCIL	40
15.	MOTIONS OF WHICH PREVIOUS NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN	40
16.	REPORTS OF CITY OFFICERS	40
17.	MEETING CLOSED TO PUBLIC	40
18.	CLOSURE	40

#### 1. DECLARATION OF OPENING

The Mayor declared the meeting open at 6:00pm.

#### 2. PRAYER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF TRADITIONAL LAND OWNERS

"Heavenly Father, we thank you for the peace and beauty of this area. Direct and prosper the deliberations of this Council for the advancement of the City and the welfare of its people. Amen."

"We would like to acknowledge the Noongar people who are the Traditional Custodians of the Land.

We would also like to pay respect to Elders past, present and emerging".

#### 3. RECORD OF APOLOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Mayor	D Wellington
Councillors:	
Breaksea Ward	P Terry
Breaksea Ward	R Hammond
Frederickstown Ward	G Stocks (Deputy Mayor)
Kalgan Ward	E Doughty
Kalgan Ward	M Benson-Lidholm JP
Vancouver Ward	T Sleeman
Vancouver Ward	J Shanhun
West Ward	A Goode JP
West Ward	S Smith
Yakamia Ward	R Sutton
Yakamia Ward	C Thomson
Staff:	
Chief Executive Officer	A Sharpe
Executive Director Corporate & Commercial Services	D Olde
A/Executive Director Infrastructure, Development	
& Environment	A McEwan
Executive Director Community Services	N Watson
Masting Constant	D. Clark
Meeting Secretary	D Clark
Apologies:	
Frederickstown Ward	Vacant

#### 4. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Name	Report Item Number	Nature of Interest
Councillor Smith	CCS366	<b>Proximity.</b> The nature of the interest being that Councillor Smith is part owner of a property located directly opposite the Albany Surf Life Saving Club. Councillor Smith left the Chamber and was not present during the discussion and vote for this item.

#### 5. **REPORTS OF MEMBERS**

#### 6:01pm Councillor Terry Summary of Key Points

Councillor Terry advised that he had attended the Maritime Festival, along with his young daughter and enjoyed the event very much. Hopes to see the festival develop and grow in the future.

Councillor Terry also attended a mock scenario as part of the Airport Emergency Committee, which was very interesting.

Councillor Terry expressed how pleased he was to see that the Youth Challenge Park was now open to the public, and how pleased he is to see that FOGO has been rolled out

Councillor Terry also commented that he attended an event on Thursday evening hosted by the Albany Community Hospice, with Mr Richard Goyder was the guest speaker. The event raised \$6,500, very positive to see.

#### 6:05pm Councillor Benson Summary of Key Points

Councillor Benson advised that he also enjoyed the Maritime Festival and found it to be a great event for all those who attended, including the Seafood Industry who made various donations. Congratulations to the events team and Simone Klose for their organisation of this event.

Councillor Benson advised that he was honoured to have attended Korean War Memorial Service on Sunday as the Mayor's representative, and found the service to be very moving.

#### 6:07pm Councillor Shanhun Summary of Key Points

Councillor Shanhun advised that he had been busy with phone calls regarding clean up following the recent storm damage. He had attended a Local Emergency Management Committee (LEMC) meeting following the storm, and was pleased to see all, 49 organisations working together to assist with the clean-up.

Councillor Shanhun advised that he attended a recent Citizenship Ceremony at which 38 people became citizens. The speech provided by the Mayor was timely given the recent issues with "freedom of speech" that had arisen following the Perth Theatre Trust's bid to exclude certain groups from booking the Albany Entertainment Centre.

#### 6:10pm Councillor Smith Summary of Key Points

Councillor Smith wished to thank all staff involved in the Maritime Festival, and was really pleased by the variety of events that were available. Lots of options for a wide range of people

#### 6:11pm Councillor Goode Summary of Key Points

Councillor Goode was pleased to see local volunteer fire fighters heading to Canada to assist with fighting fires. This included, City of Albany employee, Heather Bell which was wonderful to see.

#### 6. RESPONSE TO PREVIOUS PUBLIC QUESTIONS TAKEN ON NOTICE Nil

#### 7. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

In accordance with City of Albany Standing Orders Local Law 2014 (as amended):

5) The Presiding Member may decide that a public question shall not be responded to where— (a) the same or similar question was asked at a previous Meeting, a response was provided and the member of the public is directed to the minutes of the Meeting at which the response was provided;

(b) the member of the public asks a question or makes a statement that is offensive, unlawful or defamatory in nature, provided that the Presiding Member has taken reasonable steps to assist the member of the public to rephrase the question or statement in a manner that is not offensive, unlawful or defamatory.

#### 6:13pm Mr Carl Richardson, Blue Wren Court, Little Grove Summary of Key Points

Mr Richardson spoke in support of CCS366 Albany Surf Life Saving Club Expansion Proposal. Mr Richardson thanked the Community and Corporate Services (CCS) committee for supporting the redevelopment and advised that he supported the officer recommendation in its entirety.

#### 6:17pm Mr Don Phillips, 114 Frenchman Bay Road Summary of Key Points

Mr Phillips acknowledge the stance taken by the Mayor in standing up for "free speech" when it was made known that the Perth Theatre Trust did not allow certain organisations to book their facilities.

Mr Phillips then asked to present "questions on notice" for Executive Director, Duncan Olde. Mr Phillips sought clarification regarding what investigation had taken place by the City to prove that there was no stable fly on Lot 17 Panorama Road stating that the property was under surveillance and he does not believe that there is a record of anyone attending the property to conduct this investigation.

Mr Phillips also asked Mr Andrew Sharpe, Chief Executive Officer to respond to previous questions provided (list attached).

Mr Sharpe advised, that, as previously stated in writing, the City considers this matter has been dealt with and is closed. Mr Phillips had received a final response on this issue stating that the stable fly directive had been withdrawn. Mr Sharpe encouraged Mr Phillips, to contact the WA Ombudsman or seek legal advice if he was not happy with the stance taken by the City.

#### 8. APPLICATIONS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE Nil

#### 9. PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS Nil

#### 10. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

RESOLUTION

VOTING REQUIREMENT: SIMPLE MAJORITY

MOVED: COUNCILLOR THOMSON SECONDED: COUNCILLOR GOODE

THAT the minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 22 June 2021, as previously distributed, be CONFIRMED as a true and accurate record of proceedings.

CARRIED 12-0

#### 11. PRESENTATIONS Nil

#### 12. UNRESOLVED BUSINESS FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS Nil

# CCS359: FINANCIAL ACTIVITY STATEMENT – MAY 2021

Proponent / Owner
Attachments
<b>Report Prepared By</b>

: City of Albany

: Financial Activity Statement-May 2021

- : Manager Finance (S Van Nierop)
- Authorising Officer:
- : Executive Director Corporate & Commercial Services (D Olde)

#### **COVID-19 IMPACT**

• Impacts to the financial performance of the City are detailed in the 'Explanation of Material Variances to the YTD Budget in Excess of \$100,000' (Note 1) of the Attachment to this report (Statement of Financial Activity).

#### RECOMMENDATION

CCS359: RESOLUTION VOTING REQUIREMENT: SIMPLE MAJORITY

MOVED: COUNCILLOR TERRY SECONDED: COUNCILLOR SUTTON

THAT the Financial Activity Statement for the period ending 31 May 2021 be RECEIVED.

CARRIED 12-0

CCS359: COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MOVED: COUNCILLOR STOCKS SECONDED: COUNCILLOR DOUGHTY

THAT the Responsible Officer Recommendation be ADOPTED.

CARRIED 12-0

#### CCS359: AUTHORISING OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Financial Activity Statement for the period ending 31 May 2021 be RECEIVED.

#### BACKGROUND

- 1. The Statement of Financial Activity for the period ending 31 May 2021 has been prepared and is attached.
- 2. In addition to the statutory requirement to provide Council with a Statement of Financial Activity, the City provides Council with a monthly investment summary to ensure the performance of the investment portfolio is in accordance with anticipated returns and complies with the Investment of Surplus Funds Policy.

#### DISCUSSION

- 3. In accordance with section 34(1) of the *Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996*, the City of Albany is required to prepare each month a Statement of Financial Activity reporting on the revenue and expenditure of the local authority.
- 4. The requirement for local governments to produce a Statement of Financial Activity was gazetted in March 2005 to provide elected members with a greater insight in relation to the ongoing financial performance of the local government.
- 5. Additionally, each year a local government is to adopt a percentage or value to be used in Statements of Financial Activity for reporting material variances. Variations in excess of \$100,000 are reported to Council.
- 6. These financial statements are still subject to further year-end adjustments and have not been audited by the appointed auditor.

"Please note that rounding errors may occur when whole numbers are used, as they are in the reports that follow. The 'errors' may be \$1 or \$2 when adding sets of numbers. This does not mean that the underlying figures are incorrect."

#### STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

- 7. Section 34 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 provides:
  - I. A local government is to prepare each month a statement of financial activity reporting on the revenue and expenditure, as set out in the annual budget under regulation 22 (1)(d), for that month in the following detail:
    - a. annual budget estimates, taking into account any expenditure incurred for an additional purpose under section 6.8(1)(b) or (c); and
    - b. budget estimates to the end of the month to which the statement relates; and
    - c. actual amounts of expenditure, revenue and income to the end of the month to which the statement relates; and
    - d. material variances between the comparable amounts referred to in paragraphs (b) and (c); and
    - e. the net current assets at the end of the month to which the statement relates.
  - II. Each statement of financial activity is to be accompanied by documents containing
    - a. an explanation of the composition of the net current assets of the month to which the statement relates, less committed assets and restricted assets; and
    - b. an explanation of each of the material variances referred to in sub regulation (1)(d); and
    - c. such other supporting information as is considered relevant by the local government.
  - III. The information in a statement of financial activity may be shown
    - a. according to nature and type classification; or
    - b. by program; or
    - c. by business unit.
  - IV. A statement of financial activity, and the accompanying documents referred to in sub regulation (2), are to be
    - a. presented at an ordinary meeting of the council within 2 months after the end of the month to which the statement relates; and
    - b. recorded in the minutes of the meeting at which it is presented.
  - V. Each financial year, a local government is to adopt a percentage or value, calculated in accordance with the AAS, to be used in statements of financial activity for reporting material variances

#### POLICY IMPLICATIONS

- 8. The City's 2020/21 Annual Budget provides a set of parameters that guides the City's financial practices.
- 9. The Investment of Surplus Funds Policy stipulates that the status and performance of the investment portfolio is to be reported monthly to Council.

#### FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

- 10. Expenditure for the period ending 30 April 2021 has been incurred in accordance with the 2020/21 proposed budget parameters.
- 11. Details of any budget variation in excess of \$100,000 (year to date) follow. There are no other known events which may result in a material non recoverable financial loss or financial loss arising from an uninsured event.

## CCS366: ALBANY SURF LIFESAVING CLUB EXPANSION PROPOSAL

Land Description	: Part of the land in Crown Reserve 14789 and portion of Lot 1474 on Deposited Plan 219850, the subject of Certificate of Title LR3111 Folio 83, Middleton Beach.
Proponent / Owner Report Prepared By	<ul> <li>Albany Surf Life Saving Club Inc.</li> <li>Crown (City of Albany under Management Order)</li> <li>Executive Director Community Services (N Watson)</li> </ul>
Authorising Officer:	<ul><li>Executive Director Infrastructure, Development &amp; Environment (P Camins)</li><li>Chief Executive Officer (A Sharpe)</li></ul>

#### 6.28pm: Councillor Smith declared a Proximity Interest in this item and left the Chamber.

# 6.36pm: Councillor Smith returned to the Chamber. Councillor Smith was not present during the discussion and vote for this item.

#### STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

1. This item relates to the following elements of the Community Strategic Plan:

Theme 4: Community Health & Participation

#### **Objective:**

- To create interesting places, spaces and events that reflect our community's identity, diversity and heritage; and
- To develop and support a healthy inclusive and accessible community;

#### Community Priority:

- To maintain infrastructure and deliver programs that promote Albany's unique heritage, engender civic pride and leave a lasting memory; and
- Develop a range of activities and facilities that connect people, promote a healthy community and are appropriate for all ages.

#### Maps and Diagrams:



#### In Brief:

- To update Council on the progress of the Albany Surf Life Saving Club Expansion Proposal.
- Seek Council's endorsement of the project, including a City of Albany financial commitment and support for the Albany Surf Life Saving Club to progress the project to the next stages including the Club seeking additional funding.
- Council have previously received briefings and documentation on this project from Albany Surf Life Saving Club representatives and toured the facility.

#### RECOMMENDATION

CCS366: RESOLUTION (AMENDMENT BY COUNCILLOR DOUGHTY) VOTING REQUIREMENT: SIMPLE MAJORITY

MOVED: COUNCILLOR STOCKS SECONDED: COUNCILLOR SUTTON

- 1. That Council provide in principle support for the Albany Surf Life Saving Club Expansion Project.
- 2. That the following City of Albany contribution to the Albany Surf Lifesaving Club Expansion Project be included in the 2021/2022 draft Annual Budget for Council consideration when the Budget is adopted:
  - \$100,000 as Council's in-kind contribution for project management, which is provided for within existing operational allocations;
  - \$300,000 from the Debt Management Reserve be allocated to the project as Council's financial contribution.
- 3. THAT the Funding Agreement with Albany Surf Life Saving Club include the following condition:

The cash contribution of \$300,000 and the in-kind contribution of \$100,000 by the City of Albany is the City's maximum contribution, and any additional funding required to complete the project must be sourced by the Albany Surf Life Saving Club.

4. Council notes that a further report will be presented to Council to consider a variation to the current lease boundary to facilitate the proposed Albany Surf Lifesaving Club Expansion Project.

CARRIED 8-3

#### Record of Vote:

Against the motion: Councillors Goode, Thomson and Shanhun

CCS366: COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MOVED: COUNCILLOR DOUGHTY SECONDED: COUNCILLOR SUTTON

- 1. That Council provide in principle support for the Albany Surf Life Saving Club Expansion Project.
- 2. That the following City of Albany contribution to the Albany Surf Lifesaving Club Expansion Project be included in the 2021/2022 draft Annual Budget for Council consideration when the Budget is adopted:
  - \$100,000 as Council's in-kind contribution for project management, which is provided for within existing operational allocations;
  - \$300,000 from the Debt Management Reserve be allocated to the project as Council's financial contribution.
- 3. THAT the Funding Agreement with Albany Surf Life Saving Club include the following condition: The cash contribution of \$300,000 and the in-kind contribution of \$100,000 by the City of Albany is the City's maximum contribution, and any additional funding required to complete the project must be sourced by the Albany Surf Life Saving Club.

4. Council notes that a further report will be presented to Council to consider a variation to the current lease boundary to facilitate the proposed Albany Surf Lifesaving Club Expansion Project. CARRIED 8-3

#### Record of Vote

Against the Motion: Councillors Thomson, Goode and Shanhun

CCS366: AMENDMENT BY COUNCILLOR DOUGHTY VOTING REQUIREMENT: SIMPLE MAJORITY

MOVED: COUNCILLOR DOUGHTY SECONDED: COUNCILLOR SUTTON

THAT the Responsible Officer Recommendation be AMENDED to include a new point 3:

3. THAT the Funding Agreement with Albany Surf Life Saving Club include the following condition:

The cash contribution of \$300,000 and the in-kind contribution of \$100,000 by the City of Albany is the City's maximum contribution, and any additional funding required to complete the project must be sourced by the Albany Surf Life Saving Club.

CARRIED 9-2

#### Record of Vote

Against the Motion: Councillors Goode and Shanhun

#### **Councillor Reason:**

The intent of this amendment is to ensure that the City's contribution to this project of cash and in-kind support is capped at \$400,000. Should the Albany Surf Life Saving Club (ASLSC) require further funding to complete the expansion project it will need to be sourced through other funding opportunities.

Noting that it is likely to be two years before construction commences on the expansion project, this also takes into account that albeit the current total project cost is estimated to be \$2.5M, there is the potential for cost escalation given the current market for contractors and supplies. Any shortfall in funding due project costs being re-estimated need to be borne by ASLSC or through alternative funding sources.

#### Officer Comment:

Officers support the proposed amendment as it provides further clarity to the recommended City contribution.

It should be noted that a new Universal Access Toilet (UAT) will be co-located with the current public toilets which are the responsibility of the City and is outside the proposed new lease area and Albany Surf Life Saving Club redevelopment. The new UAT cost will be the responsibility of the City.

CCS366: AUTHORISING OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

MOVED: COUNCILLOR HAMMOND SECONDED: COUNCILLOR SLEEMAN

- 1. That Council provide in principle support for the Albany Surf Life Saving Club Expansion Project.
- 2. That the following City of Albany contribution to the Albany Surf Lifesaving Club Expansion Project be included in the 2021/2022 draft Annual Budget for Council consideration when the Budget is adopted:
  - \$100,000 as Council's in-kind contribution for project management, which is provided for within existing operational allocations;
  - \$300,000 from the Debt Management Reserve be allocated to the project as Council's financial contribution.

3. Council notes that a further report will be presented to Council to consider a variation to the current lease boundary to facilitate the proposed Albany Surf Lifesaving Club Expansion Project.

#### BACKGROUND

- 2. The Albany Surf Life Saving Club (ASLSC) operates from purpose-built facility on Crown Reserve 14789, Middleton Beach.
- 3. ASLSC has outgrown its current facility, recording a 42% membership increase over the past five years. This situation has caused a number of significant challenges for the club and how it services the community including:
  - a. Safety issues posing a serious risk to members and public safety due to design limitations with rescue craft, vehicle interactions and fuel with pedestrians;
  - b. Inadequate storage space;
  - c. Insufficient education and training facilities; and
  - d. Growing demand to utilise the surf club for community events and community groups within the precinct.
- 4. ASLSC provides a highly valued community service for Albany and the Great Southern in the fields of lifesaving, first aid, emergency response, education and training, and intergenerational sport and recreation.
- 5. With recent support of long term planning, design and infrastructure in Middleton Beach provided by all levels of government led by City of Albany, ASLSC has undertaken a review of its own vision for the future, and capacity to meet current and future community demand.
- 6. Further to this review, a clubhouse expansion project has been identified which would significantly improve the safety, efficiency and capacity of service delivery, and create new platforms for stronger links to the broader and beach going communities.
- 7. The ASLSC are seeking to partner with the City to deliver this project. ASLSC are seeking both a financial commitment of \$300,000 plus additional in-kind support for project management in the vicinity of \$100,000 from the City in order to deliver the facility expansion project.

#### DISCUSSION

- 8. The expansion project is of high strategic importance to the ASLSC with the support of its rapidly growing membership base. ASLSC looks forward to continuing to work with the local community, City of Albany, and both State and Federal governments to deliver the highest standard of community service and to make the club redevelopment vision become a reality.
- 9. The expansion will:
  - a. Improve the safety, function and efficiency of core delivery spheres lifesaving, emergency services, training and education, surf sports and competition;
  - b. Make the club more accessible and connected to the community; and
  - c. Assist the ASLSC to meet current community demand at Middleton Beach and build capacity for future growth and development of surf lifesaving services.
- 10. The concept will be achieved through the following initiatives:
  - a. Relocation of motorised water safety storage and operations into a new building extension to the northern end of the current lease to separate pedestrian use zones from vehicle movements. This will mitigate risk of injury to pedestrians and enhance the safety of operations.
  - b. Expanded and dedicated lifesaving hub to consolidate into a single central location. This further separates motorised and non-motorised club functions and brings lifesaving front and centre to the club.

- c. A new community meeting and events space to support a number of user groups of both the facility and precinct. The multipurpose space will be managed by ASLSC and offered free of charge to community groups.
- d. A new education and training space to improve the capacity of ASLSC to cater for concurrent training, education and community uses. It is envisaged that community groups will be able to hire this space at minimal cost, rather than booking the whole venue.

#### Funding Opportunities

- 11. The estimated \$2.5M project has secured a \$1.6M election commitment from the current State Government and a financial contribution from the ASLSC. Additional funding opportunities with Lotterywest and other sponsors are being actively progressed by ASLSC.
- 12. It is noted that Lotterywest have previously indicated potential funding, however this is conditional on a City contribution to the project.

#### STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

13. The City's contribution is conditional on the additional funding requested by the ASLSC being included in 2021-2022 Budget and the ASLSC securing the funding required to complete the project.

#### POLICY IMPLICATIONS

14. Nil.

#### **RISK IDENTIFICATION & MITIGATION**

15. The risk identification and categorisation relies on the City's Enterprise Risk & Opportunity Management Framework.

Risk	Likelihood	Consequence	Risk Analysis	Mitigation
Financial: Lack of available finance.	Possible	Moderate	Medium	Development of a funding strategy Re-scope the project design to achieve an outcome within available funding
Financial & Reputational: Failure to secure a workable solution may result in the condition of the ASLSC existing amenities deteriorating to an unsafe condition and not providing a safe facility for members and patrons.	Possible	Moderate	Medium	Work with ASLSC and community partners to seek alternate solutions for a safe facility, such a re-scoping the project
<i>Financial and Reputational:</i> <i>Current State Government</i> <i>commitments and priorities for the</i> <i>development may be at risk if</i> <i>further funding support is not</i> <i>provided by the City and other</i> <i>sponsors.</i>	Possible	Moderate	Medium	Request Council to consider supporting the project and advocating for the project delivery.

#### FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

- 16. The total cost estimate for the proposed facility expansion project is \$2.5 million.
- 17. Subject to Council endorsing the recommendations within this report, \$300,000 will be included in the 2021-2022 draft Annual Budget for Council consideration.
- 18. In addition to the financial contribution, the City of Albany will act as the lead agency for the project development and provide project management support as its in-kind contribution estimated at \$100,000. An additional budget allocation is not required for the in-kind contribution, as this can be provided for within existing City operational allocations.

#### LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

19. Not applicable to this report.

# CCS366

#### ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS

20. Not applicable to this report.

#### **ALTERNATE OPTIONS**

- 21. Council may:
  - a. Determine an alternate amount of cash and in-kind contribution; or
  - b. Decline the request for cash and in-kind contribution, noting that this may affect ASLSC's ability to deliver the project and leverage other funding, as other funding streams maybe conditional on the City contributing to the project.

#### SUMMARY CONCLUSION

- 22. The proposed ASLSC facility expansion will create a community facility with greater capacity to benefit the wider community through improved access to lifesaving, water safety operations, new training and education spaces.
- 23. Council is asked to support the financial and in-kind contribution as outlined within this report.

Consulted References	:	Nil
File Number (Name of Ward)	:	PRO040, A90251 (Frederickstown)
Previous Reference	:	Nil

# CCS361: DELEGATED AUTHORITY REPORTS – MAY 2021 to JUNE 2021

Proponent / Owner	: City of Albany
Attachments	: Executed Document and Common Seal Report.
Report Prepared By	: Personal Assistant to the ED Corporate & Commercial Services (H Bell)
Authorising Officer:	: Chief Executive Officer (A Sharpe)

#### RECOMMENDATION

CCS361: RESOLUTION VOTING REQUIREMENT: SIMPLE MAJORITY

MOVED: COUNCILLOR GOODE SECONDED: COUNCILLOR SUTTON

THAT the Delegated Authority Reports 16 May 2021 to 15 June 2021 be RECEIVED.

CARRIED 12-0

CCS361: COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MOVED: COUNCILLOR SMITH SECONDED: COUNCILLOR STOCKS

THAT the Responsible Officer Recommendation be ADOPTED.

CARRIED 12-0

CCS361: AUTHORISING OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Delegated Authority Reports 16 May 2021 to 15 June 2021 be RECEIVED.

#### BACKGROUND

- 1. In compliance with Section 9.49A of the *Local Government Act 1995* and Part IV of the *Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996* the attached report applies to the use of the Common Seal and the signing of documents under Council's Delegated Authority:
  - Delegation: 006 SIGN DOCUMENTS ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ALBANY (Chief Executive Officer)
  - Delegation: 009 GRANT FUNDING, DONATIONS, SPONSORSHIP
  - Delegation: 018 CHOICE OF TENDER, AWARD CONTRACT

# CCS362: WRITE OFF GENERAL DEBT REPORT AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

Proponent	: City of Albany
Attachments	: Write Off Debtors General Debt
Report Prepared by	: Manager Finance (S Van Nierop)
Authorising Officer	: Executive Director Corporate & Commercial Services (D Olde)

#### RECOMMENDATION

CCS362: RESOLUTION VOTING REQUIREMENT: SIMPLE MAJORITY

MOVED: COUNCILLOR TERRY SECONDED: COUNCILLOR DOUGHTY

THAT Council RECEIVE the General Debtors Write Off Report as at 30 June 2021.

CARRIED 12-0

CCS362: COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MOVED: COUNCILLOR BENSON-LIDHOLM SECONDED: COUNCILLOR DOUGHTY

THAT the Responsible Officer Recommendation be ADOPTED.

CARRIED 12-0

CCS362: AUTHORISING OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

THAT Council RECEIVE the General Debtors Write Off Report as at 30 June 2021.

MINUTES - 27/07/2021

# CCS363: RATING SUBSIDY: SPORTING AND COMMUNITY **ORGANISATION RECIPIENT LIST FOR 2020-21**

Proponent	: City of Albany
Attachments	: Rating Subsidy: Sporting and Community Organisations
	Recipient List for 2020-21
Report Prepared by	: Senior Finance Officer – Rates (G Shephard)
Authorising Officer	: Executive Director Corporate & Commercial Services (D Old

: Executive Director Corporate & Commercial Services (D Olde)

#### RECOMMENDATION

CCS363: RESOLUTION **VOTING REQUIREMENT: SIMPLE MAJORITY** 

**MOVED: COUNCILLOR SUTTON** SECONDED: COUNCILLOR BENSON-LIDHOLM

THAT the Rating Subsidy: Sporting and Community Organisations Recipient List for 2020-21 be RECEIVED.

CARRIED 12-0

CCS363: COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MOVED: COUNCILLOR SUTTON SECONDED: COUNCILLOR SHANHUN

THAT the Responsible Officer Recommendation be ADOPTED.

CARRIED 12-0

CCS363: AUTHORISING OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Rating Subsidy: Sporting and Community Organisations Recipient List for 2020-21 be RECEIVED.

# CCS364: NATIONAL ANZAC CENTRE - LEAGUE OF LOCAL LEGENDS MEMBERSHIP AND PROMOTION

<b>Business Entity Name</b>
Report Prepared By

Authorising Officer:

- : City of Albany
- : Manager Facilities (L Stone)
- : Executive Director Community Services (N Watson)

#### STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

- 1. This item relates to the following elements of the City of Albany Strategic Community Plan or Corporate Business Plan informing plans or strategies:
  - Theme: Smart Prosperous and Growing
  - **Objective:** To strengthen our region's economic base; and
    - To develop and promote Albany as a unique and sought after destination.
  - **Community Priority:** Strengthen our economy by supporting business innovation and diversity; and
    - Promote the Albany region as a sought after and iconic tourism destination.

In Brief:

• To consider a recommendation from the National Anzac Centre Advisory Group to trial free entry for Great Southern residents as a strategy to increase local visitation.

#### RECOMMENDATION

CCS364: RESOLUTION VOTING REQUIREMENT: ABSOLUTE MAJORITY

MOVED: COUNCILLOR SLEEMAN SECONDED: COUNCILLOR GOODE

THAT the offer of free entry to the National Anzac Centre for League of Local Legends members only, for a further 12-month promotional period concluding 30 June 2022, be APPROVED.

CARRIED 12-0 ABSOLUTE MAJORITY

CCS364: COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MOVED: COUNCILLOR SLEEMAN SECONDED: COUNCILLOR BENSON-LIDHOLM

THAT the Responsible Officer Recommendation be ADOPTED.

CARRIED 12-0

#### CCS364: AUTHORISING OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

THAT the offer of free entry to the National Anzac Centre for League of Local Legends members only, for a further 12-month promotional period concluding 30 June 2022, be APPROVED.

#### BACKGROUND

- 2. The National Anzac Centre (NAC) is the City of Albany's most significant tourism asset.
- 3. The City of Albany manages this national museum and understands the importance of generating economic outcomes for the region using the NAC and the Albany Heritage Park (AHP) assets to encourage increased visitation and extended stays to the region.
- 4. The City established an independent NAC Advisory Group (NACAG) during the 2016/17 financial year to assist in the further development of both the NAC and AHP, to ensure the assets continue to evolve, aligned with contemporary museum standards.
- 5. The NAC League of Local Legends program aims to provide the local community with discounted opportunities to access one of our community's most important and nationally significant cultural assets.
- 6. At the NACAG meeting on September 18, 2020, concerns were raised about the ongoing trend of very low local visitation to the NAC and strategies to improve this.
- 7. The NACAG recommended Council trial free entry for residents from the Great Southern region for a period of 6 months from 1<sup>st</sup> January 2021 to 30<sup>th</sup> June 2021.
- 8. At the Ordinary Council Meeting of 24 November 2020 Council considered this subject and endorsed a recommendation to:
  - 1. APPROVE expanding membership eligibility for the National Anzac Centre's League of Local Legends to residents living within the Great Southern geographical boundary; and
  - 2. APPROVE offering free entry to the National Anzac Centre for League of Local Legends members for a promotional period commencing 1st January 2021 and concluding 30th June 2021.
- 9. The expanded membership region encompasses the 11 local government boundaries of Albany, Denmark, Plantagenet, Jerramungup, Broomehill-Tambellup, Cranbrook, Gnowangerup, Katanning, Kent, Kojonup and Woodanilling.
- 10. YTD results (up to 31 May 2021) of the expanded membership program were collated and tabled to the NACAG at its most recent meeting in June 2021.

#### DISCUSSION

- 11. A breakdown of the League of Local Legends data collected during the promotional period from 1<sup>st</sup> January 2021 to 31<sup>st</sup> May 2021 is detailed below.
- 12. Data for June 2021, being the final month of the 6-month promotional period, was not available at the time of compiling this report.

#### Visitation Summary (Quarter 3):

- 13. In August 2020 the NAC changed to new point-of-sale software from Centaman to Vend. When the League of Local Legends data was transferred over to Vend, the number associated with the program changed from 5,361 memberships (individuals) to 2,736 memberships (households).
- 14. Vend counts household memberships, not individual people. Individual people that are registered are still counted when visiting the centre, as well as paying visitors accompanying members.
- 15. As at the conclusion of Quarter 3 (31 March 2021), the League of Local Legends Program had a total of 4,123 memberships / households. This equates to an increase of 1,204 household memberships since the free membership program started.

Number of Memberships	at 31	Mar 2021	at 30 J	at 30 Jun 2021		
	4	,123	Not yet	known		
New Memberships Q3	Jan	Feb	Mar	Total		
	56	5 311	328	1204		
Visitation Q3	Jan	Feb	Mar	Total		
Local Legends	98	3 174	173	445		
Accompanying Visitors	6	35	38	134		
Total	159	209	211	579		

- 16. Great Southern visitation to the NAC increased from what has been a steady 1% of overall WA visitation in past years.
- 17. The free-entry for League of Local Legends members' promotion commenced January 1, 2021, with the visitation during the Jan–Mar 2021 (Quarter 3) period from the Great Southern Region totalling 652 people or 4.4% of Western Australia's overall visitation of 14,723.
- 18. Great Southern visitation for the same period Jan–Mar in 2020 totalled 288 people, or 3.6% of Western Australia's overall visitation of 7,835 for that period.
- 19. The visitation data for the quarter indicates the free-entry promotion has significantly contributed to the growth in the below figures for the 3-month period Jan–Mar 2021 compared to the Jan–Mar 2020:
  - 11,528 increase in visitors from Western Australia;
  - 364 increase in visitors from Great Southern;
  - 66 increase in accompanying paying visitors of League of Local Legends members;
  - 342 increase in League of Local Legends members visiting; and
  - 1,204 new memberships during Jan–Mar 2021 period, 859 more memberships to the same period 2020.

#### Visitation Summary (Quarter 4):

- 20. The visitation for April and May below reflects the positive growth achieved in the first 3 months of the League of Local Legends promotion. The final figures for Quarter 4 and the overall figures for the 6-month promotional period will not be known until end of June.
- 21. Memberships as at end of May are 4,884, representing an increase of 761 memberships since the end of Quarter 3 at March 31.

New Memberships	Apr	Мау	Total
	428	333	761

22. With a month of data (June) for the quarterly reporting period still unavailable, visitation from League of Local Legends members for Quarter 4 has already exceeded the total membership visitation recorded in Quarter 3.

Visitation	Apr	Мау	Total
Local Legends	335	305	660
Accompanying Visitors	129	53	182

23. The below table shows the YTD figures of the memberships and visitations, with Q3 and Q4 attributed to the League of Local Legends promotional period.

Memberships &				Q4 Apr-May	Total
Visitation 20/21	Q1 Jul-Sep	Q2 Oct-Dec	Q3 Jan-Mar	ONLY	
Household Memberships	86	94	1,204	761	2,145
Visits by League of Local					
Legends	137	43	445	640	1,265
Accompanying Paying					
Visitors	79	53	134	167	433
Great Southern Visitation	537	373	652	760	2,322

#### NACAG Recommendation

- 24. The NACAG has recommended Council consider extending the free entry promotion for League of Local Legends Members for a further 12-month period, from 1<sup>st</sup> July 2021 to 30<sup>th</sup> June 2022.
- 25. Given the ongoing support for the program and positive increase in visitation numbers, it was considered that extending the free entry membership offer would not have any material negative impact on entry income from the NAC across the recommended period, and would make the museum more accessible to residents from our region.
- 26. The extended free entry membership offer is recommended by NACAG to indicate whether significant growth in local visitation from the Great Southern can continue to be achieved, and what impact this will have on paying visitation numbers from outside the region.
- 27. The NACAG recommendation did consider the new visitation statistics for Q1, Q2, Q3 and YTD data for Q4 of 2020-21. Data for the final month of Quarter 4 (June 2021) was unavailable at the time, but it is not expected it would have made a material difference to the NACAG's considerations.

#### **GOVERNMENT & PUBLIC CONSULTATION**

28. N/A

#### STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

29. The Local Government Act 1995:

Section 6.12. Power to defer, grant discounts, waive or write off debts

(1) Subject to subsection (2) and any other written law, a local government may --

- (a) when adopting the annual budget, grant\* a discount or other incentive for the early payment of any amount of money; or
  - (b) waive or grant concessions in relation to any amount of money; or
  - (c) write off any amount of money,

which is owed to the local government.

\* Absolute majority required.

(2) Subsection (1)(a) and (b) do not apply to an amount of money owing in respect of rates and service charges.

30. The delegated authority to waive fees and charges, does not extend to the writing off of admission fees, noting the condition of delegation states:

#### Condition of Delegation:

- (a) This authorisation:
  - does not extend to statutory charges, the municipal rate or service charges incorporated within the rate notice.
  - is subject to:
    - Conditions contained in Council Policies;
    - Funding being allocated in the City's Annual Budget; and
    - Reporting:

- Funding/Donations limited to \$10,000.
- Funding/Donations above \$10,000 must be reported to Council.
- (b) Any waiver, reduction or refund of a fee shall be based on the following criteria:
  - The proposal not being intended to be a money making venture for the benefit of the entity.
  - The cost of in-kind support and work undertaken by the City of Albany.
  - The application is on behalf of a non-profit or charitable organisation or be reflective of the benefit of the proposal to the community.

#### POLICY IMPLICATIONS

31. N/A

#### **RISK IDENTIFICATION & MITIGATION**

- 32. To ensure appropriate decisions are made with quality information, stakeholder consultation and research, Council must be informed of the risk the City faces as a result of its decision making.
- 33. Risk identification and mitigation advice assists Council maximise opportunity and minimise risks and hazards that may impact upon the effective and efficient management of City assets, functions and services.
- 34. The risk identification and categorisation relies on the City's Enterprise Risk and Opportunity Management Framework.

Risk	Likelihood	Consequence	Risk Analysis	Mitigation
<i>Financial:</i> 12-month promotional period results in loss of ticket revenue from existing annual local visitor intake to the NAC, adversely impacting budgeted revenue.	Unlikely	Minor	Low	Continue to monitor budgeted revenue versus actuals this financial year and inform Council of any anticipated material adverse impact on budget.
<i>Financial:</i> There is expectation that free entry for Great Southern residents will continue, or be available to any visitor.	Possible	Minor	Medium	Clearly communicate the terms and timing of the free entry membership offer.
Legal and Compliance: A visitor attempts to gain free entry fraudulently by providing false residential details on presentation at the NAC.	Unlikely	Minor	Low	Utilising the existing League of Local Legends program requires residents to provide their contact details – and these are retained on records – as part of the sign-up process. Officers also request proof of ID, such as a Drivers Licence.

#### FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

- 35. Offering free entry for League of Local Legends members is not expected to result in any significant loss of ticket revenue as it is attracting visitors to the NAC that were otherwise not engaging with the museum.
- 36. In fact, there has been an increase in accompanying paying visitors during the promotional period of more than 200% compared to the first two quarters of 2020-2021, bringing additional ticket revenue that may not have otherwise been achieved.
- 37. Revenue from NAC ticket sales achieved in the 2019-2020 financial year was approximately \$753,000, and as at the time of writing this report was at \$998,442 for 2020-2021.
- 38. This remains lower than the \$1.185 million in 2018-2019 and is credited to Covid restrictions reducing interstate and international visitation.
- 39. A full non-discounted or non-concession entry fee to the NAC is \$25. Prior to adopting the free-entry promotion for members, League of Local Legends visitors would receive a 50% discount if visiting the NAC with a paying visitor.

#### LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

40. N/A.

#### **ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS**

#### 41. N/A

#### ALTERNATE OPTIONS

- 42. Council may choose not to approve the responsible officer's recommendation and return to the status-quo League of Local Legends membership eligibility and incentives that were in place prior to the promotional program.
- 43. Council may choose to amend the recommended timeframe for the extension of the membership promotional offer.

#### CONCLUSION

- 44. During the promotional period up to 31 May 2021:
  - a. the rate of new League of Local Legends memberships has increased more than 10x compared to the first two quarters of the financial year;
  - b. Visitation by League of Local Legends members has increased more than 600% compared to the first two quarters of the financial year;
  - c. Accompanying paying visitors has increased by more than 200% compared to the first two quarters;
  - d. Overall Great Southern visitation has increased by about 55% compared to the first two quarters, indicating the promotional campaign has attracted significant additional local visitation.
- 45. Noting these results do not include June, the data as it stands indicates the initiative has been very successful in achieving the desired outcome.
- 46. The expanded League of Local Legends program will continue to offer membership to the whole Great Southern region, irrespective of whether a discounted entry fee is reinstated or not.
- 47. The additional local visitation generated has not previously been captured and therefore has had minimal impact on overall ticket revenue at the NAC.
- 48. Year-to-date actuals for ticket sales at the NAC is currently around \$190k over budget in a Covid-19 compromised tourism market with significantly increased Great Southern visitors entering for free since 1 January, 2021.
- 49. Given the additional local visitation generated, and minimal impact the program has on overall ticket revenue for the NAC, there is justification to consider continuing to offer free membership for League of Local Legends members for a further term.
- 50. During this time, further analysis will be undertaken and reported back to Council through existing reporting mechanisms.

Consulted References	:	Local Government Act 1995		
File Number (Name of Ward)	:	All Wards		
Previous References	:	<ul> <li>OCM November 2020, Resolution CCS308 - National Anzac Centre         <ul> <li>League of Local Legends Membership and Promotion - – Briefing Note NACAG June 2021.</li> </ul> </li> <li>OCM August 2020, Resolution CCS279 - National Anzac Centre – Q4 Report.</li> </ul>		

19

## CCS365: ALBANY BICENTENARY: PROVISIONAL GOVERNANCE MODEL

Proponent / Owner Attachments	<ul> <li>City of Albany</li> <li>Albany Bicentenary Provisional Governance Model</li> <li>Terms of Reference – Advisory Group</li> <li>Terms of Reference – Indigenous Reference Group</li> <li>Terms of Reference – Community Reference Group</li> <li>Terms of Reference – Commercial and Industry Reference Group.</li> </ul>
Report Prepared By Authorising Officer:	<ul> <li>Bicentenary Coordinator (B Findlay)</li> <li>Executive Director Community Services (N Watson)</li> </ul>

#### STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

1. This item relates to the following elements of the City of Albany Community Strategic Plan or Corporate Business Plan informing plans or strategies:

Theme 1: Leadership, Smart, Prosperous and Growing

**Objective 1.1:** To establish and maintain sound business and governance structures.

• Encourage, support and deliver significant events that promote our region and have a positive economic and social benefit.

**Community Priority 1.1.2:** Provide informed and transparent decision making that is consistent with our strategic direction, meets our legal obligations, reflect the level of associated risk and are adequately explained to community.

• Our City regularly hosts significant events and activities which attract positive feedback.

Theme 2: Smart, Prosperous and Growing

**Objective 2.3:** To develop and promote Albany as a unique and sought-after visitor location.

**Community Priority 2.3.1:** Encourage, support and deliver significant events that promote our region and have a positive economic and social benefit.

#### In Brief:

• To seek Council's in-principle support of the governance framework for the planning and engagement of the 2026 Albany Bicentenary.

#### RECOMMENDATION

CCS365: RESOLUTION VOTING REQUIREMENT: SIMPLE MAJORITY

MOVED: COUNCILLOR STOCKS SECONDED: COUNCILLOR SUTTON

THAT this report be DEFERRED to allow further refinement of the Governance Model, and be RE-PRESENTED to the Ordinary Council Meeting to be held on 25 August 2021.

CARRIED 12-0

#### PROCEDURAL MOTION

MOVED: COUNCILLOR DOUGHTY SECONDED: COUNCILLOR SMITH

THAT this report be DEFERRED to allow further refinement of the Governance Model, and be RE-PRESENTED to the Ordinary Council Meeting to be held on 25 August 2021.

CARRIED 12-0

#### CCS365: AUTHORISING OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

THAT Council ENDORSE the City of Albany Bicentenary Provisional Governance Model.

#### BACKGROUND

- 2. Albany is the traditional lands of the Menang Noongar people and, in 1826, became the first European settlement in Western Australia, established three years before the Swan River Colony (now Perth).
- 3. Within this context, it is fully recognised that place anniversaries in Australia marking points in time of European history – mean different things to different people. To some, these occasions recognise the foundations of one of the most successful and peaceful western liberal democracies in the world. For others, these anniversaries mark the decimation of one of the oldest living cultures in the world. With this in mind, planning for the acknowledgement of Western Australia's bicentenary requires a careful and sensitive whole-of-community approach.
- 4. Albany's Bicentenary in 2026 is an ideal opportunity for Albany to realise its potential of being a cultural destination in regional WA. The city has a deeply rooted Aboriginal heritage, proud military history notably as the departure point for the Anzacs in 1914 has a strong contribution to music and arts, well-recognised, beautiful and diverse landscapes and coastlines, including access to World Heritage biodiversity hotspots, and historically-significant streetscapes and architecture.
- 5. Preliminary work was undertaken across 2018-2019 around scoping a high-level discussion paper for 2026, but progress towards strategic planning and engagement for the Bicentenary was stalled by the Covid pandemic.
- 6. Focussed work on the project re-commenced in January 2021 and a provisional governance model has been developed toward 2026 to establish a partnership with the Menang-Noongar community and collaborate with key stakeholders and community to develop a scope for the Bicentenary.

#### DISCUSSION

- 7. Provision of a Governance Model for the 2026 Bicentenary project is a Key Performance Indicator for the City of Albany CEO.
- 8. The purpose of the proposed model is to demonstrate the broad role of each tier in formulating a suitable response to the Bicentenary. As the project develops, this model may be reviewed to incorporate personnel or groups considered relevant to delivery.
- 9. Core to the governance structure is establishing a partnership with the Menang-Noongar community to work collaboratively on project outcomes, and the proposed model is intended to ensure broad consultation with the community surrounding the Bicentenary project.
- 10. The proposed model and various Terms of Reference will be refined as required once full membership of the Advisory Group is established to ensure the Menang-Noongar community is represented and has input into the final framework.

- 11. Officers are seeking Council endorsement of the Albany Bicentenary Provisional Governance Model in order to progress the project.
- 12. The aim of the proposed governance model is to ensure the project and its outputs are well managed and retain core objectives and strategies toward the 2026 Bicentenary.
- 13. As well as recognising the core aim of 2026 being a partnership between the City of Albany and local Menang Community, a dedicated Advisory Group, a Local Implementation Group (a subgroup of the Advisory Group), and various Reference Groups are proposed.
- 14. A key focus of the Bicentenary Discussion Paper and Business case is the need for a comprehensive model which will form the basis for project and funding advocacy, project partnerships and implementation.
- 15. An infographic and Terms of Reference for groups has been developed to provide clarity on governance arrangements, noting:
  - a. The proposed Key Objectives, General Responsibilities and Membership Arrangements of each group are outlined within the respective draft Terms of Reference; and
  - b. Terms of Reference for the Local Implementation Group will be developed following delivery of a prospectus by the Advisory Group in order to align membership with the skills required for implementation.
  - c. A focussed Bicentenary Book working group and relevant Terms of Reference to oversee and coordinate the production and publication of a contemporary history of Albany, in the form of a hard cover illustrated book for the Bicentenary, will be progressed concurrent to the implementation of the broader working groups.
- 16. As the project develops, the governance model may be reviewed to incorporate personnel or groups considered relevant to delivery.

#### **GOVERNMENT & PUBLIC CONSULTATION**

- 17. City officers have sought advice from members of the Advisory Group regarding the provisional governance model and nomenclature.
- 18. The proposed model is intended to ensure broad consultation with the community surrounding the Bicentenary project.
- 19. Further consultation on the model and terms of reference will follow establishment of the membership of all groups.

#### STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

20. Nil.

#### **POLICY IMPLICATIONS**

21. Nil.

#### **RISK IDENTIFICATION & MITIGATION**

22. The risk identification and categorisation relies on the City's Enterprise Risk and Opportunity Management Framework.

Risk	Likelihood	Consequence	Risk Analysis	Mitigation
<b>Reputational.</b> <b>Risk</b> : The opportunity to achieve broader cultural acknowledgement and reconciliation as key outcomes of 2026 is missed.	Possible	Major	High	Establish a framework that fosters a partnership with the Menang- Noongar community and ensures Noongar engagement and involvement in 2026 outcomes.
<b>Reputational.</b> <b>Risk</b> : The Bicentenary project does not meet community expectations.	Possible	Major	High	Ensure there is strong cross- representation of stakeholders within working groups membership and undertake broad consultation to achieve community input into 2026 scope.
<b>Operational.</b> <b>Risk</b> : No governance model, or an inadequate model, is adopted to guide the project and deliver objectives.	Possible	Major	High	Adopt provisional governance model to support the project progressing in a structured and collaborative manner, on the basis of further consultation and refinement once full membership is finalised.
objectives. <b>Opportunity:</b> To formalise a stakeholders in achieving co Bicentenary.				finalised. volvement of partners and

#### FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

- 23. A budget allocation of around \$150,000 per financial year for operational planning of the Bicentenary project has been factored into the City of Albany's long-term financial planning.
- 24. A budget allocation of \$30,000 has been included within the draft 2021-2022 Budget towards the production and publication of a book for the Bicentenary, as resolved by Council at the OCM on 7<sup>th</sup> July 2020.
- 25. The City of Albany's long term financial plan includes annual allocations to a reserve towards the delivery of the Bicentenary in 2026 and will be used to leverage additional State and Federal funding at the appropriate time.
- 26. A funding application was submitted under round 5 of the Building Better Regions Fund to resource the consultation phase of the project. An outcome on this application is expected by August.

#### LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

27. Nil.

#### ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS

28. Nil.

#### ALTERNATE OPTIONS

29. Council may choose to not endorse the Provisional Governance Model.

#### CONCLUSION

30. 2026 presents an opportunity for Albany to lead the way in achieving greater cultural acknowledgement and inclusion as legacy outcomes of the significant Bicentennial milestone.

- 31. This Provisional Governance Model has been developed to support establishing a partnership with the Menang-Noongar community and achieve broad community input through consultation into the scope for 2026.
- 32. The proposed governance model and various Terms of Reference will be refined as required once full membership of the Advisory Group is established to ensure the Menang-Noongar community is represented and has input into the final framework.
- 33. Officers are seeking Council's endorsement of the Provisional Governance Model for the Albany Bicentenary in order to progress the project and resolve full membership of all the groups.

Consulted References	•••	Nil
File Number (Name of Ward)	•••	All wards
Previous Reference	•••	N/A

## CCS366: ALBANY SURF LIFESAVING CLUB EXPANSION PROPOSAL

Land Description	:	Part of the land in Crown Reserve 14789 and portion of Lot 1474 on Deposited Plan 219850, the subject of Certificate of Title LR3111 Folio 83, Middleton Beach.
Proponent / Owner Report Prepared By		Albany Surf Life Saving Club Inc. Crown (City of Albany under Management Order) Executive Director Community Services (N Watson)
		Executive Director Infrastructure, Development & Environment (P Camins)
Report Prepared By Authorising Officer:		Executive Director Community Services (N Watson) Executive Director Infrastructure, Development &

#### 6.28pm: Councillor Smith declared a Proximity Interest in this item and left the Chamber.

# 6.36pm: Councillor Smith returned to the Chamber. Councillor Smith was not present during the discussion and vote for this item.

#### STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

1. This item relates to the following elements of the Community Strategic Plan:

Theme 4: Community Health & Participation

#### Objective:

- To create interesting places, spaces and events that reflect our community's identity, diversity and heritage; and
- To develop and support a healthy inclusive and accessible community;

#### Community Priority:

- To maintain infrastructure and deliver programs that promote Albany's unique heritage, engender civic pride and leave a lasting memory; and
- Develop a range of activities and facilities that connect people, promote a healthy community and are appropriate for all ages.

#### Maps and Diagrams:



#### In Brief:

- To update Council on the progress of the Albany Surf Life Saving Club Expansion Proposal.
- Seek Council's endorsement of the project, including a City of Albany financial commitment and support for the Albany Surf Life Saving Club to progress the project to the next stages including the Club seeking additional funding.
- Council have previously received briefings and documentation on this project from Albany Surf Life Saving Club representatives and toured the facility.

#### RECOMMENDATION

#### CCS366: RESOLUTION (AMENDMENT BY COUNCILLOR DOUGHTY) VOTING REQUIREMENT: SIMPLE MAJORITY

MOVED: COUNCILLOR STOCKS SECONDED: COUNCILLOR SUTTON

- 1. That Council provide in principle support for the Albany Surf Life Saving Club Expansion Project.
- 2. That the following City of Albany contribution to the Albany Surf Lifesaving Club Expansion Project be included in the 2021/2022 draft Annual Budget for Council consideration when the Budget is adopted:
  - \$100,000 as Council's in-kind contribution for project management, which is provided for within existing operational allocations;
  - \$300,000 from the Debt Management Reserve be allocated to the project as Council's financial contribution.
- 3. THAT the Funding Agreement with Albany Surf Life Saving Club include the following condition:

The cash contribution of \$300,000 and the in-kind contribution of \$100,000 by the City of Albany is the City's maximum contribution, and any additional funding required to complete the project must be sourced by the Albany Surf Life Saving Club.

4. Council notes that a further report will be presented to Council to consider a variation to the current lease boundary to facilitate the proposed Albany Surf Lifesaving Club Expansion Project.

#### **CARRIED 8-3**

#### Record of Vote:

Against the motion: Councillors Goode, Thomson and Shanhun

CCS366: COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MOVED: COUNCILLOR DOUGHTY SECONDED: COUNCILLOR SUTTON

- 1. That Council provide in principle support for the Albany Surf Life Saving Club Expansion Project.
- 2. That the following City of Albany contribution to the Albany Surf Lifesaving Club Expansion Project be included in the 2021/2022 draft Annual Budget for Council consideration when the Budget is adopted:
  - \$100,000 as Council's in-kind contribution for project management, which is provided for within existing operational allocations;
  - \$300,000 from the Debt Management Reserve be allocated to the project as Council's financial contribution.
- 3. THAT the Funding Agreement with Albany Surf Life Saving Club include the following condition:

The cash contribution of \$300,000 and the in-kind contribution of \$100,000 by the City of Albany is the City's maximum contribution, and any additional funding required to complete the

project must be sourced by the Albany Surf Life Saving Club.

4. Council notes that a further report will be presented to Council to consider a variation to the current lease boundary to facilitate the proposed Albany Surf Lifesaving Club Expansion Project.

CARRIED 8-3

CARRIED 9-2

#### Record of Vote

Against the Motion: Councillors Thomson, Goode and Shanhun

CCS366: AMENDMENT BY COUNCILLOR DOUGHTY VOTING REQUIREMENT: SIMPLE MAJORITY

MOVED: COUNCILLOR DOUGHTY SECONDED: COUNCILLOR SUTTON

THAT the Responsible Officer Recommendation be AMENDED to include a new point 3:

3. THAT the Funding Agreement with Albany Surf Life Saving Club include the following condition:

The cash contribution of \$300,000 and the in-kind contribution of \$100,000 by the City of Albany is the City's maximum contribution, and any additional funding required to complete the project must be sourced by the Albany Surf Life Saving Club.

#### Record of Vote

Against the Motion: Councillors Goode and Shanhun

#### **Councillor Reason:**

The intent of this amendment is to ensure that the City's contribution to this project of cash and in-kind support is capped at \$400,000. Should the Albany Surf Life Saving Club (ASLSC) require further funding to complete the expansion project it will need to be sourced through other funding opportunities.

Noting that it is likely to be two years before construction commences on the expansion project, this also takes into account that albeit the current total project cost is estimated to be \$2.5M, there is the potential for cost escalation given the current market for contractors and supplies. Any shortfall in funding due project costs being re-estimated need to be borne by ASLSC or through alternative funding sources.

#### Officer Comment:

Officers support the proposed amendment as it provides further clarity to the recommended City contribution.

It should be noted that a new Universal Access Toilet (UAT) will be co-located with the current public toilets which are the responsibility of the City and is outside the proposed new lease area and Albany Surf Life Saving Club redevelopment. The new UAT cost will be the responsibility of the City.

CCS366: AUTHORISING OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

MOVED: COUNCILLOR HAMMOND SECONDED: COUNCILLOR SLEEMAN

- 1. That Council provide in principle support for the Albany Surf Life Saving Club Expansion Project.
- 2. That the following City of Albany contribution to the Albany Surf Lifesaving Club Expansion Project be included in the 2021/2022 draft Annual Budget for Council consideration when the Budget is adopted:
  - \$100,000 as Council's in-kind contribution for project management, which is provided for within existing operational allocations;

- \$300,000 from the Debt Management Reserve be allocated to the project as Council's financial contribution.
- 3. Council notes that a further report will be presented to Council to consider a variation to the current lease boundary to facilitate the proposed Albany Surf Lifesaving Club Expansion Project.

#### BACKGROUND

- 2. The Albany Surf Life Saving Club (ASLSC) operates from purpose-built facility on Crown Reserve 14789, Middleton Beach.
- 3. ASLSC has outgrown its current facility, recording a 42% membership increase over the past five years. This situation has caused a number of significant challenges for the club and how it services the community including:
  - a. Safety issues posing a serious risk to members and public safety due to design limitations with rescue craft, vehicle interactions and fuel with pedestrians;
  - b. Inadequate storage space;
  - c. Insufficient education and training facilities; and
  - d. Growing demand to utilise the surf club for community events and community groups within the precinct.
- 4. ASLSC provides a highly valued community service for Albany and the Great Southern in the fields of lifesaving, first aid, emergency response, education and training, and intergenerational sport and recreation.
- 5. With recent support of long term planning, design and infrastructure in Middleton Beach provided by all levels of government led by City of Albany, ASLSC has undertaken a review of its own vision for the future, and capacity to meet current and future community demand.
- 6. Further to this review, a clubhouse expansion project has been identified which would significantly improve the safety, efficiency and capacity of service delivery, and create new platforms for stronger links to the broader and beach going communities.
- 7. The ASLSC are seeking to partner with the City to deliver this project. ASLSC are seeking both a financial commitment of \$300,000 plus additional in-kind support for project management in the vicinity of \$100,000 from the City in order to deliver the facility expansion project.

#### DISCUSSION

- 8. The expansion project is of high strategic importance to the ASLSC with the support of its rapidly growing membership base. ASLSC looks forward to continuing to work with the local community, City of Albany, and both State and Federal governments to deliver the highest standard of community service and to make the club redevelopment vision become a reality.
- 9. The expansion will:
  - a. Improve the safety, function and efficiency of core delivery spheres lifesaving, emergency services, training and education, surf sports and competition;
  - b. Make the club more accessible and connected to the community; and
  - c. Assist the ASLSC to meet current community demand at Middleton Beach and build capacity for future growth and development of surf lifesaving services.
- 10. The concept will be achieved through the following initiatives:
  - a. Relocation of motorised water safety storage and operations into a new building extension to the northern end of the current lease to separate pedestrian use zones from vehicle movements. This will mitigate risk of injury to pedestrians and enhance the safety of operations.

- b. Expanded and dedicated lifesaving hub to consolidate into a single central location. This further separates motorised and non-motorised club functions and brings lifesaving front and centre to the club.
- c. A new community meeting and events space to support a number of user groups of both the facility and precinct. The multipurpose space will be managed by ASLSC and offered free of charge to community groups.
- d. A new education and training space to improve the capacity of ASLSC to cater for concurrent training, education and community uses. It is envisaged that community groups will be able to hire this space at minimal cost, rather than booking the whole venue.

#### Funding Opportunities

- 11. The estimated \$2.5M project has secured a \$1.6M election commitment from the current State Government and a financial contribution from the ASLSC. Additional funding opportunities with Lotterywest and other sponsors are being actively progressed by ASLSC.
- 12. It is noted that Lotterywest have previously indicated potential funding, however this is conditional on a City contribution to the project.

#### STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

13. The City's contribution is conditional on the additional funding requested by the ASLSC being included in 2021-2022 Budget and the ASLSC securing the funding required to complete the project.

#### POLICY IMPLICATIONS

14. Nil.

#### **RISK IDENTIFICATION & MITIGATION**

15. The risk identification and categorisation relies on the City's Enterprise Risk & Opportunity Management Framework.

Risk	Likelihood	Consequence	Risk Analysis	Mitigation
Financial: Lack of available finance.	Possible	Moderate	Medium	Development of a funding strategy Re-scope the project design to achieve an outcome within available funding
Financial & Reputational: Failure to secure a workable solution may result in the condition of the ASLSC existing amenities deteriorating to an unsafe condition and not providing a safe facility for members and patrons.	Possible	Moderate	Medium	Work with ASLSC and community partners to seek alternate solutions for a safe facility, such a re-scoping the project
Financial and Reputational: Current State Government commitments and priorities for the development may be at risk if further funding support is not provided by the City and other sponsors.	Possible	Moderate	Medium	Request Council to consider supporting the project and advocating for the project delivery.

#### FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

- 16. The total cost estimate for the proposed facility expansion project is \$2.5 million.
- 17. Subject to Council endorsing the recommendations within this report, \$300,000 will be included in the 2021-2022 draft Annual Budget for Council consideration.
- 18. In addition to the financial contribution, the City of Albany will act as the lead agency for the project development and provide project management support as its in-kind contribution estimated at \$100,000. An additional budget allocation is not required for the in-kind contribution, as this can be provided for within existing City operational allocations.

#### LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

19. Not applicable to this report.

#### **ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS**

20. Not applicable to this report.

#### ALTERNATE OPTIONS

- 21. Council may:
  - a. Determine an alternate amount of cash and in-kind contribution; or
  - b. Decline the request for cash and in-kind contribution, noting that this may affect ASLSC's ability to deliver the project and leverage other funding, as other funding streams maybe conditional on the City contributing to the project.

#### SUMMARY CONCLUSION

- 22. The proposed ASLSC facility expansion will create a community facility with greater capacity to benefit the wider community through improved access to lifesaving, water safety operations, new training and education spaces.
- 23. Council is asked to support the financial and in-kind contribution as outlined within this report.

Consulted References	:	Nil
File Number (Name of Ward)	:	PRO040, A90251 (Frederickstown)
Previous Reference	:	Nil

# CCS367: 2021-22 BUDGET ADOPTION

Proponent	: City of Albany
Attachments	: Draft 2021-22 Budget Documents
Report Prepared by	: Business Analyst/Management Accountant (D Harrison)
Authorising Officer	: Chief Executive Officer (A Sharpe)
	Executive Director Corporate & Commercial Services (D Olde)

#### STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

- 1. This item relates to the following elements of the City of Albany Strategic Community Plan or Corporate Business Plan informing plans or strategies:
  - Theme: 1: Leadership.
  - **Objective: 1.2:** To establish and maintain sound business and governance structures.
  - **Community Priority: 1.2.1:** Develop informed and transparent decision making processes that meet our legal obligations, reflect the level of associated risk and are adequately explained to community.
- 2. This proposed budget aligns with the City's Corporate Business Plan where possible and takes into account the consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic:

#### In Brief:

• Approve the 2021/2022 budget, noting that the proposed budget is a result of a series of elected member and staff workshops.

#### RECOMMENDATION

CCS367: RESOLUTION 1 VOTING REQUIREMENT: ABSOLUTE MAJORITY

MOVED: COUNCILLOR DOUGHTY SECONDED: COUNCILLOR SHANHUN

THAT Council ADOPT the following municipal rates in the dollar on gross rental valuations and unimproved valuations and minimum rate values for the 2021/2022 financial year:

- (1) Rating Category 1 GRV General
  - The General Rate on Gross Rental Values for the 2021/2022 financial year on Rating Category (1) including all GRV rateable land be <u>10.4699</u> cents in the dollar.
- (2) Rating Category 3 UV
  - The General Rate on current unimproved values for the 2021/2022 financial year on Rating Category (3) including all UV rateable land be <u>0.3984</u> cents in the dollar.
- (3) Minimum Rate
  - The Minimum Rate for Rating Category 1 GRV General rateable properties within the City of Albany will be \$<u>1,067.00</u>
  - The Minimum Rate for Rating Category 3 UV rateable properties within the City of Albany will be <u>\$1,153.00</u>

CARRIED 12-0 ABSOLUTE MAJORITY

CCS367

CCS367: RESOLUTION 2 VOTING REQUIREMENT: ABSOLUTE MAJORITY				
MOVED: COUNCILLOR SUTTON SECONDED: COUNCILLOR SMITH				
THAT Council APPROVES the following Waste Collection charges for the City of Albany (including general waste collection, bulk green waste, collection of recyclables and green/fogo waste) be adopted for the 2021/2022 financial year:				
<ul> <li>(1) <u>Residential Services</u></li> <li>Full Residential Waste Service</li> <li>Waste Collection 140 Ltr MGB</li> <li>Recycling Collection 240 Ltr MGB</li> <li>FOGO Waste Collection 240Ltr MGB</li> </ul>	\$361.00 Fortnightly Fortnightly Fortnightly and (Weekly between mid December and mid February)			
(2) Additional Services				
Additional Services (Maximum of Two) with a full residential waste service.				
<ul> <li>Waste Collection 140 Ltr MGB (Inc GST)</li> <li>Recycling Collection 240 Ltr MGB (Inc GST)</li> <li>FOGO Waste Collection 240Ltr MGB (Inc GST)</li> </ul>	Fortnightly \$70.50 Fortnightly \$60.00 Fortnightly \$60.00 and (Weekly between mid December and mid February)			
(3) <u>Waste Facilities Maintenance Rate (Section 66(1) Waste</u> <u>Recovery Act 2007)</u>	Avoidance and Resource			
In addition to the full domestic refuse service the City will be raising an annual rate under section 66(1) of the <i>Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Act 2007</i> (WARR Act) and, in accordance section 66(3) of the WARR Act, apply the minimum payment provisions of section 6.35 of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> . The rate is proposed to be called the 'Waste Facilities Maintenance Rate'. The minimum payment will be \$56.				
The proposed rates are:				
<ul> <li>GRV General Properties – Rate in the dollar: 0.01 Cents, minimum \$56.00</li> <li>UV General Properties – Rate in the dollar: 0.0022 Cents, minimum \$56.00</li> </ul>				

CARRIED 12-0 ABSOLUTE MAJORITY

#### CCS367: RESOLUTION 3 VOTING REQUIREMENT: ABSOLUTE MAJORITY

MOVED: COUNCILLOR BENSON SECONDED: COUNCILLOR TERRY

THAT Council ADOPTS:

- (1) Pursuant to the provisions of section 6.2 of the *Local Government Act* 1995 and Part 3 of the *Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations* 1996, the Municipal and Trust Fund Budgets as contained in the Attachment to this agenda and the minutes, for the City of Albany for the 2021/2022 financial year which includes the following:
  - Statement of Comprehensive Income by Nature and Type on page (v) showing a net result for that year of \$13,181,188
  - Statement of Comprehensive Income by Program on page (vi) showing a net result for that year of \$13,181,188
  - Statement of Cash Flows showing cash & cash equivalents at year-end of \$11,231,328 on page (vii)
  - Rate Setting Statement on page (viii) showing an amount required to be raised from rates of \$39,670,655
  - Notes to and Forming Part of the Budget on pages (1 to 59)
  - Fees and Charges and Capital Works Schedule as detailed on pages (60 to 99)
  - Transfers to / from Reserve Accounts as detailed in pages (44 to 49)
- (2) Pursuant to section 6.11 of the *Local Government Act* 1995, maintain the following reserves (noting the purpose of each reserve detailed in page 44 to 49 of the budget):
  - Airport Reserve
  - Albany's Bicentennial Reserve
  - Albany Entertainment Centre Reserve
  - Albany Heritage Park Infrastructure Reserve
  - Albany Leisure And Aquatic Centre Synthetic Surface "Carpet" Reserve
  - Albany Town Hall Reserve
  - Bayonet Head Infrastructure Reserve
  - Building Restoration Reserve
  - Capital Seed Funding for Sporting Clubs Reserve
  - Centennial Park Stadium and Pavilion Renewal Reserve
  - Cheyne Beach Reserve
  - City of Albany General Parking Reserve
  - Coastal Management Reserve
  - Debt Management Reserve (Purpose: To receipt funds for the Long Term Debt Strategy and fund Infrastructure Projects.)
  - Destination Marketing & Economic Development Reserve
  - Emu Point Boat Pens Development Reserve
  - Emu Point Marina Reserve 42964 Reserve
  - Great Southern Contiguous Local Authorities Group Reserve
  - Information Technology Reserve
  - Land Acquisition Reserve
  - Master Plan Funding Reserve
  - National Anzac Centre Reserve
  - Parks and Recreation Grounds and Trails Reserve
  - Plant & Equipment Reserve
  - Public Open Space Reserve
  - Refuse Collection & Waste Minimisation Reserve
  - Roadworks & Drainage Reserve

CCS367

- Developer Contributions (Non-Current) Reserve
- Unspent Grants Reserve
- Waste Management Reserve

CARRIED 12-0 ABSOLUTE MAJORITY

CCS367: RESOLUTION 4 VOTING REQUIREMENT: ABSOLUTE MAJORITY

MOVED: COUNCILLOR STOCKS SECONDED: COUNCILLOR HAMMOND

THAT Council <u>APPROVES</u> the due dates for payment of Rates and Waste Collection Charges for 2021/2022 be as follows:

- (1) Pay rates in full 23rd September 2021.
- (2) Pay by two instalments:
  - (a) First Instalment Payment 23rd September 2021; and
  - (b) Second Instalment: 25th January 2022.
- (3) Pay by four instalments:
  - (a) First Instalment Payment 23rd September 2021;
  - (b) Second Instalment: 23rd November 2021;
  - (c) Third Instalment: 25th January 2022; and
  - (d) Fourth Instalment: 25th March 2022.

CARRIED 12-0 ABSOLUTE MAJORITY

CC367: RESOLUTION 5 VOTING REQUIREMENT: ABSOLUTE MAJORITY

MOVED: COUNCILLOR TERRY SECONDED: COUNCILLOR DOUGHTY

THAT Council <u>IMPOSES</u> the following Rates and Charges to provide for Administration and Interest Charges on Rating, Waste Collection and General Debtor Collection charges during the 2021/2022 financial year:

(1) Instalment Plan Administration Fee

In accordance with section 6.45(3) of the Local Government Act 1995 and clause 13 of the Local Government (COVID-19 Response) Ministerial Amendment Order 2021, gazetted on 1 June 2021, an Instalment Plan Administration fee of \$6.50 for the second and each subsequent instalment notice issued will apply for rates and rubbish collection charges subject to:

- a) This additional charge cannot be applied to an excluded person, as defined in the Local Government (COVID-19 Response) Ministerial Amendment Order 2021, that has been determined as suffering financial hardship as a consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic in accordance with Council Policy CM.STD.7 Financial Hardship.
- (2) Late Payment Interest Charge

In accordance with section 6.51(1) of the Local Government Act 1995 and clause 14 of the Local Government (COVID-19 Response) Ministerial Amendment Order 2021, gazetted on 1 June 2021, a charge on outstanding rates and rubbish collection accounts (including amounts owed on ad hoc Payment Plans) of 7% p.a will be calculated daily at 0.01918% on a simple interest basis for the number of days from the account due date until the day prior to the day on which the payment is received subject to:

a) This interest rate cannot be applied to an excluded person, as defined in the Local Government (COVID-19 Response) Ministerial Amendment Order 2021, that has been determined by the City of Albany as suffering financial hardship as a consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic.

#### (3) Instalment Plan Interest Charge

In accordance with section 6.45(3) of the Local Government Act 1995 and clause 13 of the Local Government (COVID-19 Response) Ministerial Amendment Order 2021, gazetted on 1 June 2021, an interest rate of 5.5% p.a will be calculated on a daily basis at 0.0151% by simple interest basis from the due date of the first instalment as shown on the rate notice to the due date of each respective instalment subject to:

a) This additional interest rate cannot be applied to an excluded person, as defined in the Local Government (COVID-19 Response) Ministerial Amendment Order 2021, that has been determined as suffering financial hardship as a consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic in accordance with Council Policy CM.STD.7 Financial Hardship.

#### (4) Late Payment Interest Charge (Excluding Rates & Charges)

In accordance with section 6.13 of the Local Government Act 1995 and clause 8 of the Local Government (COVID-19 Response) Ministerial Amendment Order 2021, gazetted on 1 June 2021 - A charge of 7% p.a interest, calculated on a simple interest basis for the number of days outstanding, may apply on unpaid debts (other than rates and rubbish collection charges) outstanding 35 days from the date of invoices raised after 1 July 2021. In respect to the Late Payment Interest Charge on rates and charges, the method of calculating the interest charge is on the daily balance outstanding subject to:

a) a person who is considered by the City of Albany to be suffering financial hardship as a consequence of COVID-19 pandemic.

#### <u>Waivers</u>

Where a small balance remains on a property assessment due to circumstances such as a delay in the receipt of mail payments or monies from property settlements and additional daily interest has accumulated, amounts outstanding of \$5.00 and under will be waived, as it is not considered cost effective or equitable to recover from the new property owner. Estimated loss of revenue from this waiver is \$1,100.

> CARRIED 12-0 ABSOLUTE MAJORITY

CCS367: RESOLUTION 6 VOTING REQUIREMENT: ABSOLUTE MAJORITY

MOVED: COUNCILLOR SMITH SECONDED: COUNCILLOR SHANHUN

THAT Council <u>APPROVES</u> the Schedule of Fees and Charges (which forms part of the 2021/2022 Budget) be adopted effective from 28th July 2021.

CARRIED 12-0 ABSOLUTE MAJORITY CCS367: RESOLUTION 7 VOTING REQUIREMENT: ABSOLUTE MAJORITY

**MOVED: COUNCILLOR THOMSON** SECONDED: COUNCILLOR SMITH

THAT Council SETS the Elected Member Sitting Fees and Allowances as prescribed by the Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996 per annum, being:

- (1)Councillor Meeting Attendance Fee: \$31,678
- (2) Mayoral Meeting Attendance Fee: \$47,516
- (3)Councillor and Mayoral ICT Allowance: \$3,500
- (4) Annual Travel and Accommodation Allowance (allowable claims in excess of this allowance will be reimbursed): \$50
- (5) Total Mayoral Allowance is: \$89,753
- (6) Deputy Mayoral Allowance: \$22,438 being 25% of the Mayoral Allowance.

CARRIED 12-0 **ABSOLUTE MAJORITY** 

CCS367: RESOLUTION 8 VOTING REQUIREMENT: ABSOLUTE MAJORITY

MOVED: COUNCILLOR TERRY SECONDED: COUNCILLOR BENSON

THAT Council APPROVES a variance between actual and budget-to-date of greater than \$100,000 is considered to be a material variance for reporting purposes in the Statement of Financial Activity for 2021/2022.

CARRIED 12-0 **ABSOLUTE MAJORITY** 

#### BACKGROUND

- 3. Council has considered strategic and operational issues which will impact on the 2021/22 budget.
- 4. Under section 6.36 of the Local Government Act 1995, the City is not required to advertise the proposed rates amounts for the 2021/22 financial year.

#### DISCUSSION

- 5. Through Council workshops, Council members have considered various factors in developing a financially responsible budget including the consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic, while ensuring compliance with Local Government legislation, occupational safety and health requirements, continuation of the various services provided by the City, cost-saving initiatives and new capital projects that are "project ready" or will be required to be undertaken this financial year, given commitments previously made by Council.
- 6. An important consideration in preparing any budget is to ensure that Council works towards achieving financial sustainability for the future.
- 7. The draft budget reflects a number of factors to maintain financial sustainability, which will impact not only on this year's budget but will have a compounding effect in future budgets.

36

#### **GOVERNMENT & PUBLIC CONSULTATION**

8. The Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries is not consulted prior to budget adoption. Once the Budget is adopted, a copy is sent to the Department for review.

#### **PUBLIC CONSULTATION / ENGAGEMENT**

9. Budget information will be published in the local newspapers and on the City of Albany website.

#### STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

10. This item directly relates to, and contributes to achievement of, the Strategies within the Community Strategic Plan – Albany 2023 and the consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic.

#### POLICY IMPLICATIONS

11. Nil.

#### **RISK IDENTIFICATION & MITIGATION**

12. The risk identification and categorisation relies on the City's Enterprise Risk and Opportunity Management Framework.

Risk	Likelihood	Consequence	Risk Analysis	Mitigation
			Analysis	
<i>Financial &amp; Reputation:</i> Council does not endorse the 2021/22 Budget, with the consequential risk of deferred cash flow, and thus inability to meet financial commitments.	Unlikely	Extreme	Extreme	Delegated authority to the CEO to incur expenditure under the Local Government Act 1995 until Budget endorsement. Reconsideration of the budget paper at a Council meeting prior to 31 August 2021.

#### FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

- 13. The 2021/22 Budget sets the parameters for expenditure of City resources.
- 14. The City must meet its legislative and debt obligations through endorsement of a budget. Failure to do so incurs considerable financial and other risks to the City.

#### LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

15. Nil.

#### ALTERNATE OPTIONS

16. Council adopt the 2021/22 Annual Financial Budget with changes.

#### SUMMARY CONCLUSION

17. Endorsement of the budget provides delegated authority to the CEO to incur expenditure from 1 July 2021 until 30 June 2022.

Consulted References	:	Local Government Act 1995		
		• Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996.		
File Number (Name of Ward)	•••	FM.BUG.12		
Previous Reference	••	Budget Workshop – 18 May 2021		
		Budget Workshop – 15 June 2021		
		OCM July 2020 Resolution CCS271		

# DIS264: PLANNING AND BUILDING REPORTS JUNE 2021

Proponent / Owner Attachments Report Prepared By Authorising Officer:

- : City of Albany.
- : Planning and Building Reports June 2021
- : Information Officer Development Services (Z Sewell)
- : Manager Planning and Building Services
  - (J Van Der Mescht)

#### RECOMMENDATION

#### DIS264: RESOLUTION VOTING REQUIREMENT: SIMPLE MAJORITY

MOVED: COUNCILLOR THOMSON SECONDED: COUNCILLOR STOCKS

THAT the Planning and Building Reports for June 2021be NOTED.

CARRIED 12-0

#### **COVID-19 IMPACT**

• COVID-19 has no impact on this report.

# LEMC026: MINUTES OF THE LOCAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – 25 MARCH 2021

Attachments	: Confirmed Minutes of the LEMC Meeting held 25/03/2021.
Report Prepared By	: Personal Assistant to Executive Director Corporate & Commercial Services (H Bell)
Authorising Officer:	: Executive Director Corporate and Commercial Services (D Olde)

#### STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

- 1. This item relates to the following elements of the City of Albany Strategic Community Plan or Corporate Business Plan informing plans or strategies:
  - Theme: Leadership.
  - **Objective:** To provide strong, accountable leadership supported by a skilled and professional workforce
  - **Community Priority:** Provide positive leadership that delivers community outcomes.

In Brief:

• Receive the minutes of the Local Emergency Management Committee meeting held on 25 March 2021.

#### RECOMMENDATION

LEMC026: RESOLUTION VOTING REQUIREMENT: SIMPLE MAJORITY

MOVED: COUNCILLOR SHANHUN SECONDED: COUNCILLOR HAMMOND

THAT the confirmed minutes of the Local Emergency Management Committee meeting held on 25 March 2021 be RECEIVED.

CARRIED 12-0

- 14. NEW BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE INTRODUCED BY DECISION OF COUNCIL Nil
- 15. MOTIONS OF WHICH PREVIOUS NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN Nil
- 16. **REPORTS OF CITY OFFICERS** Nil
- 17. MEETING CLOSED TO PUBLIC Nil
- 18. CLOSURE

There being no further business, the Mayor declared the meeting closed at 6:44pm

(Unconfirmed Minutes)

Dennis W Wellington **MAYOR**